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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
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Individually and on Case No:
behalf of all others similarly situated,

[y
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CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR
Plaintiff, VIOLATION OF THE FEDERAL
SECURITIES LAWS

—
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V.

[
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JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

J—
(V)]

HETONG GUO, JING YANG,
JIANGYU LUO, and LENTUO
INTERNATIONAL INC,,

—
o N N

Defendants.
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Plaintiff [l ( Plaintiff”), by Plaintiff’s undersigned attorneys,
individually and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated, alleges the

NN
N

following based upon personal knowledge as to Plaintiff’s own acts, and information

N
W

and belief as to all other matters, based upon, inter alia, the investigation conducted

(®)
N

by and through Plaintiff’s attorneys, which included, among other things, a review of

N
()

Defendants’ public documents, conference calls and announcements made by

N
(o)}

Defendants, United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filings,

N
~J

wire and press releases published by and regarding Lentuo International Inc.

[\
oo
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(“Lentuo” or the “Company”), analysts’ reports and advisories about the Company,
and information readily obtainable on the Internet. Plaintiff believes that substantial
evidentiary support will exist for the allegations set forth herein after a reasonable
opportunity for discovery.

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. This is a federal securities class action brought on behalf of a class
consisting of all persons and entities, other than defendants and their affiliates, who
purchased or otherwise acquired the American Depositary Shares (“ADS”) of Lentuo
from June 14, 2013 to March 9, 2015, inclusive (the "Class Period"), seeking to
recover compensable damages caused by Defendants’ violations of federal securities
laws (the “Class”).

2. Lentuo operates automobile franchise dealerships in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”). It provides a “one-stop shop” experience for its
customers by offering them a wide range of automobile products and services in each
of its franchise dealership, or 4S (sales, spare parts, services and survey ) dealership
as they are commonly known in the PRC—understood to mean it offers a full range
of automobile retail services.

3. Throughout the Class Period, Defendants made false and/or misleading
statements, as well as failed to disclose material adverse facts about the Company’s
business, operations, prospects and performance. Specifically, during the Class
Period, Defendants made false and/or misleading statements and/or failed to disclose
that: (1) Beijing Lentuo Electromechanical Group Co., Ltd. (“Lentuo
Electromechanical”)—a related party of Lentuo—anticipated and issued RMB 250
million of debt in 2013 to finance the construction of 4S dealerships; (2) the
consolidation of Lentuo Electromechanical into Lentuo’s financial statement is
required; (3) Lentuo did not have sufficient working capital for 2015; and (4) as a
result of the foregoing, the Company’s financial statements and results were

materially false and misleading at all relevant times.
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4, On May 28 2014, SeekingAlpha.com (“Seeking Alpha’) published an
article by Geolnvesting, LLC (“Geolnvesting”), a research company, which revealed
Lentuo Electromechanical issued debt through two trusts in 2013—one for RMB 150
million and one for RMB 100 million—for a total of RMB 250 million
(approximately $41 million) to finance the construction of 4S dealerships. (the “May
28™ Geolnvesting Report”). Neither loan was disclosed in the Company’s Form 20-F
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 filed with the SEC (the “2013 20-F”).

5. On May 29, 2014, the Company issued a response to the May 28"

O 00 N N i AW

Geolnvesting Report, which confirmed the RMB 150 million trust loan (the “May
29" Company Response”).
6. On June 5, 2014, Seeking Alpha published an article by Geolnvesting

—
N = O

rebutting the May 29" Company Response (the “June 5™ Geolnvesting Rebuttal”).

J—
W

Geolnvesting asserted that the RMB 150 million trust loan should have been
disclosed in the 2013 20-F and Lentuo should have consolidated Lentuo

[
N

Electromechanical into its financial statements.

—
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7. On this news, Lentuo’s ADS fell $0.34 per share or over 9% from its

J—
~J

previous closing price to close at $3.15 per share on June 5, 2014, damaging

J—
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investors.

8. On March 10, 2015, Beijing Business Today reported that all of Lentuo’s

N
S O

4S dealerships are partially shut down due to “working capital turnover” problems.

9. On this news, Lentuo’s ADS fell $0.30 per share or over 50% over the

NN
N

next two days from its closing price on March 9, 2015 to close at $0.29 on March 11,
2015 per share.

10. As a result of Defendants’ wrongful acts and omissions, and the

NN
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precipitous decline in the market value of the Company's ADS, Plaintiff and other

N
(o)}

Class members have suffered significant losses and damages.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
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11. The claims asserted herein arise under and pursuant to Sections 10(b)
and 20(a) of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78j(b) and 78t(a)) and Rule 10b-5
promulgated thereunder (17 C.F.R. § 8 240.10b-5).

12.  This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant
to § 27 of the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78aa) and 28 U.S.C. § 1331.

13.  Venue is proper in this District pursuant to §27 of the Exchange Act, 15
U.S.C. §78aa and 28 U.S.C. §1391(b), as a substantial part of the conduct complained
of herein occurred in this District.

14. In connection with the acts, conduct and other wrongs alleged in this
Complaint, Defendants, directly or indirectly, used the means and instrumentalities of
interstate commerce, including but not limited to, the United States mail, interstate
telephone communications and the facilities of the national securities exchange.

PARTIES

15. Plaintiff, as set forth in the attached Certification, acquired Lentuo ADS
at artificially inflated prices during the Class Period and was damaged upon the
revelation of the alleged corrective disclosures.

16. Defendant Lentuo is a Cayman Island corporation, which operates
automobile franchise dealerships—commonly known as 4S dealerships—as well as
showrooms, an auto repair shop and a car leasing company in the PRC. The company
offers various automobile products and services, including: new passenger vehicles;
auto parts, and accessories; automobile repair and maintenance services; assistance
services in procuring automobile insurance and financing; and other automobile-
related services; and automobile leasing services. Lentuo is headquartered in Beijing,
PRC and trades on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the ticker symbol
“LAS.”

17. Defendant Hetong Guo (“Guo”) is the founder of the Company and has

served as the Company’s Chairman of Board of Directors at all relevant times.
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18. Defendant Jing Yang (“Yang) has served as the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer at all relevant times.

19. Defendant Jiangyu Luo (“Luo”) has served as the Company’s Chief
Financial Officer at all relevant times.

20. The defendants referenced above in [ 17 — 19 are sometimes referred to
herein as the “Individual Defendants.”

21. Defendant Lentuo and the Individual Defendants are referred to herein,
collectively, as the “Defendants.”

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS
Background

22. Based on the Company’s 2013 20-F, its corporate structure is as follows:

Lentuz Internaticnal Inc.
(Cayman Islands)
o 100% I :
]
Lentuo HE Limdted 4 i Leamo |
e e » (“Lentuo Hoog Kong} g _{_ E ED_TJ_ _.,1: Electromechanicsl |
. (Hong Kong) : Shareholders (T} i
|
100% ; | i
* HI0%a ' 100% !
F 1 [}
Beijing Jiashi Shenstong Beijing Anhni Wanxiag Science & | 3} ! Beijing Lentno i
Investment Consubting Co_, Lid. Technolegy €0, Lid. * _(:55_.", Etectromechanical Group :
(“Jiashi Shengtong™) (“Lentin Besjing™) - Co., Ltd. !
{BRC} (FRC) i | (“Lentoo Electromechanical] | |
: ! {PRLY i
[}
. ' 1 5 H
. 1 1 _ 1
) ‘ h b—,———— !
! :
v 100%
: Adffiliated Entities (1}
"""""""""""""""""" * {PRC} N
— Eeuity interest
£ Contractual arrangements

23. Based on the Company’s 2013 20-F, Defendant Guo and Yang owns
75% and 6%, respectively, of Lentuo Electromechanical.

24,  On July 23, 2012, the Company announced it had received approval
from FAW-Volkswagen Audi to build a new 4S Audi dealership in south Beijing.
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25.  On April 30, 2013, the Company filed a Form 20-F for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2012 with the SEC (2012 20-F”), which stated it began
construction of its second Audi dealership in Beijing in November 2012.

Materially False And Misleading Statements Issued During the Class Period
26. The Class Period starts on June 14 ,2013, when the Company issued a

press release announcing its first quarter 2013 financial results, which provided the

following financial highlights:

° Revenues decreased 7.4% to RMB700.5 million ($112.8 million),
from RMB756.8 million in the first quarter 2012.

° Vehicles sold increased 5.5% to 3,855 vehicles, from 3,655
vehicles in the first quarter 2012.

L Vehicles serviced increased 17.7% to 46,486 vehicles, from
39,487 vehicles in the first quarter 2012.

o Net loss was RMB8.1 million ($1.3 million), compared to net
income of RMB16.8 million in the first quarter of 2012.

27. On September 12, 2013, the Company issued a press release announcing
its second quarter 2013 financial results, which provided the following financial
highlights:

° Net income increased 152.9% to RMB21.3 million ($3.5 million),

from net income of RMBS8.4 million in the second quarter of

2012.

° Overall gross margin of repair and maintenance services reached
12.1%, up from 9.1% in the second quarter of 2012.

° Repair and maintenance revenue as a proportion of total revenue
increased to 12.7% from 8.1% in the second quarter 2012.
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° Revenues decreased 4.1% to RMB760.3 million ($123.9 million),
from RMB792.5 million in the second quarter 2012.

L Vehicles sold decreased 7.6% to 3,973 vehicles, from 4,301
vehicles in the second quarter 2012 while gross margin for new
car sales increased to 6.5% from 5.1% in the second quarter of
2012.

° Vehicles serviced increased 8.3% to 49,650 vehicles, from 45,843
vehicles in the second quarter 2012.

28.  On December 9, 2013, the Company issued a press release announcing
its third quarter 2013 financial results, which provided the following financial
highlights:

° Revenues increased 13.6% to RMB953.1million ($155.7 million),
from RMB@838.9 million in the third quarter of 2012.

° Net income was RMB17.6 million ($2.9 million), compared with
a net loss of RMB6.4 million in the third quarter of 2012.

° Revenue from automobile repair and maintenance services as a
percentage of total revenue increased to 12.3% from 11.4% in the
third quarter of 2012.

L Vehicles sold increased 8.6% to 4,842 vehicles, from 4,460
vehicles in the third quarter of 2012.

29. In the same press release, the Company stated that “is currently focused
on the new Audi 4S dealership under construction in Beijing.”

30. On May 15, 2014, the Company filed a Form 20-F for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2013 with the SEC (the “2013 20-F”), which provided the
Company’s year end financial results and position. The 2013 20-F was signed by
Defendant Guo. The 2013 20-F contained signed certifications pursuant to the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“SOX”) by Defendants Yang and Luo, which stated
that the financial information contained in the 2013 20-F was accurate.
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31. The statements referenced in f 26 —30 above were materially false
and/or misleading because they misrepresented and failed to disclose the following
adverse facts pertaining to the Company’s business, operations, and prospects, which
were known to Defendants or recklessly disregarded by them. Specifically,
Defendants made false and/or misleading statements and/or failed to disclose that: (1)
Beijing Lentuo Electromechanical Group Co., Ltd. (“Lentuo Electromechanical”)—a
related party of Lentuo—anticipated and issued RMB 250 million of debt in 2013 to
finance the construction of 4S dealerships; (2) the consolidation of Lentuo
Electromechanical into Lentuo’s financial statement is required; and (3) as a result of
the foregoing, the Company’s financial statements and results were materially false
and misleading at all relevant times.

32. On June 27, 2014, the Company issued a press release announcing the
Company’s first quarter 2014 financial results, which provided the following
financial highlights:

° Building upon its return to profitability for the year 2013, net
income was RMB9.0 million ($1.5 million), compared to net loss
of RMBS.1 million in the first quarter of 2013.

° Growth momentum continued with revenues increasing 11.7% to
RMB782.3 million ($125.8 million), from RMB700.5 million in
the first quarter 2013.

o Gross margin for automobile sales increased to 5.7% in the first

quarter of 2014 from 2.8% in the same period of 2013 with the
introduction of new popular car models with higher gross
margins.

o Gross margin of repair and maintenance services increased to

41.5% from 33.9% for the same period in 2013 as the Company
optimized its service offerings towards higher margin products.
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1 33. In the same press release, the Company stated the following with regards
2 || to its liquidity and capital resources:
3
A Liquidity and Capital Resources
5 As of March 31, 2014, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of
6 RMB226.3 million ($36.4 million), compared to RMB266.6 million as of
December 31, 2013.
7
8 34.  On September 29, 2014, the Company issued a press release announcing
9 | the Company’s second quarter 2014 financial results, which provided the following
10 || financial highlights:
11 ) i i .
o Revenue growth momentum continued with revenues increasing
12 8.5% to RMB825.1 million ($133.0 million), from RMB760.3
13 million in the second quarter 2013.
14 ° Revenues from automobile sales increased 7.1% to RMB689.8
15 million ($111.2 million) from RMB644.0 million in the second
16 quarter 2013.
17 ° Revenues from repair and maintenance services increased by
18 14.6% to RMB110.7 million ($17.8 million) from RMB96.6
19 million in the second quarter 2013.
20 ) Net income was RMB13.7 million ($2.2 million), compared to net
71 income of RMB21.3 million in the second quarter of 2013.
22 i i
- 35. In the same press release, the Company stated the following with regards
» to its liquidity and capital resources:
25 Liquidity and Capital Resources
26 As of June 30, 2014, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of
27 RMB245.1 million ($39.5 million), compared to RMB266.6 million as
28 of December 31, 2013.
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36.
the Company’s third quarter 2014 financial results, which provided the following

On December 1, 2014, the Company issued a press release announcing

financial highlights:

37.

Net income was RMB40.8 million ($6.6 million), up 31.8% from
RMB30.9 million in the first 9 months of 2013.

Revenues from repair and maintenance services increased 17.0%
to RMB336.2 million ($54.8 million) from RMB287.3 million in
the first 3 quarters of 2013.

As a percentage of revenues, revenues from repair and
maintenance services increased to 13.9% from 11.9% in the same
period of 2013.

Gross margin for repair and maintenance services increased to
42.2% from 38.9% in the same period of 2013.

Average new vehicle unit price was RMB175, 289 ($28,558) a
5.7% increase from RMB165, 849 for same period of 2013.

Average unit price for repair and maintenance services was RMB
2,321($378) an 18.1% increase from RMB1, 966 for same period
of 2013.

In the same press release, the Company stated the following with regards

to its liquidity and capital resources:

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of September 30, 2014, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB193.5 million ($31.5 million), compared to RMB266.6 million as of
December 31, 2013.
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38. The statements referenced in ] 30, 32 — 37 above were materially false
and/or misleading because they misrepresented and failed to disclose the following
adverse facts pertaining to the Company’s business, operations, and prospects, which
were known to Defendants or recklessly disregarded by them. Specifically,
Defendants made false and/or misleading statements and/or failed to disclose that: (1)
Lentuo did not have sufficient working capital for 2015; and (2) as a result of the
foregoing, the Company’s financial statements and results were materially false and
misleading at all relevant times.

The Truth Slowly Emerges
39. On May 28 2014, Seeking Alpha published the May 28th Geolnvesting

Report, which revealed that Lentuo Electromechanical issued RMB 250 million ($41
million) of debt in 2013 through two trusts. It states in parts:

Our research uncovered evidence that Lentuo Electromechanical, a
related party entity that owns LAS's variable interest operating entities
("VIEs") in China, issued RMB 250 million ($41 million) of debt in
2013 through two trusts made up of Chinese investors. We confirmed
our findings through phone conversations with the management
companies of the two trusts. LAS appears to have neither disclosed the
debt nor its collateral in its 2013 20F filed on May 15, 2014.

% %k k ok ok
LAS requires capital to grow its 45 car dealership footprint in China.
Based on recent Chinese news, LAS's related company, Lentuo
Electromechanical, raised RMB 250 million in debt to help finance this
expansion initiative. The first RMB 150 million was raised in China
through a trust fund managed by Gansu Trust in December 2013,
according to information obtained from the Chinese website Trusttrust.
com, as follows:
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FUAER AR MPIRERGE H 4 (s 9 1 R

E;OH?Z?I Collective Fund Trust Plan for loan to Lentuo Group (Sold Qut)

dirblb TS Hiris

Issuer: Gansu Trust Issuing place:

j;?ffmmﬁ 10 5%-11 5% ikl s
;L‘“Edui:]‘fd 10.5%-11 5% Type: fixed retum
RGN 240 F (IR HIFR 22

;rr:::;t:enti 24 months {semi-annual interest payment) Type of Term:

H A L TIPS BT e L=
Type of Outflow of Money: loan to enterprise
Investment

iRl 201312 AR L
PSAN®  Dec. 2013 Status: Sold Out

Wi "1-."; b . . .
PERIERNT m ) BT AL I T RS R R Al R MAS R

Wi

Usage of  Trust Ipan to Beipng Lentuo Electromechanical Group Co., Lid.. including Beijing Audi 45 Store
Fund. canstruction
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1, il 428,

AL HEAR L R TR A B A ) B F R4S S SR iR4SIE ) 2R .

2. FEFE R,
125 ) 118 £R A JES B THL R R H R A S O R A TR 2 S 10 B T b 5 00 B Atk ke ke L AR AL TR
s PR (ST DR GLIE IR (BB BTEE4939.30F 4 RS BRTE /L 1IN R 170900.00° A ¥

rﬁiﬁt{%i}l:kmﬁiﬂhttﬂm) . EIPURP RS A N3.80281Z 70, IEHRE30%

3 R

AU S{EAR U U IR R s il o B S0 AP0 LI M B A A RBRER FTI I

1. Source of money payback:

Revenue generated from all 45 stores (including 45 stores under construction) of Beijing Lentuo
Electromechanical Group Co., Ltd.

1. Mortgage:

Sred'td ~ Land use right (commercial & service industry usage) and property at Mulintown, Shuiyi District, Beijing,
POFAdE:  Lwned by Zhonghe Investment Co., Ltd. (total construction area, 4939.30 m2 ownership and 170,900 m2
commercial land use right). Totally value of the mortgaged assets is 380.38 million. Mortgage rate is 39%.

1. Guarantor:

Beneficial owner of Beijing Lentuo Electromechanical Group Co., Ltd., Gue Hetong and his wife provide
unlimited joint and several liability.

ﬁfim K 100 /52997 10.5%:
- 30075 & L E 11.5%.

Predicted Retum:
Other
relevant 1 million to 2.99 million RMB 10 5%

info:
3 million RMB above 11.5%

The RMB 150 mitlion trust description cantains the following statement:

"Trust loan to Beijing Lentuc Electromechanical Group Co.. Ltd . including Beijing Audi 45 Store
construction”,

Page F-538 of the 20-F states:

) Capital commitment

As of December 31, 2013, the Group has contracted but unpaid cost of RMB 25,000 (US$4.130) for the
construction of a new Audi store which is in progress.

Fage 26 of the 20-F states:
"We are also constructing a new Audi dealership in Beijing.”
* %k 3k ok ok
An additional RMB 100 million was raised by Lentuo

Electromechanical through a second trust fund managed by a company
perhaps aptly called "Inthedinghong Investment Co., Ltd." A due
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1 diligence report for this trust fund is available online at Baidu Wenku.
The basic information of the trust fund obtained from Baidu Wenku is as
2 follows:
3
fREES AN RHET—{GHbEH (FOT)
4
5 Pr:_?; of Fund of Trust, Limited Partnership
6
TEHESE 10000 AC
7
8 Sz ot RMB 100 million
9
B EEL 1004 0
AR W :
10
Initial
11 Subscription RMB 1 million
amount
12
13 TR 100.500/5: 10.8% ¢ CBS) 300/ 1 1% CHLE) ¢« SOORKK 1 12% CR)
14
Predicted
15 Annual 1-3 million RMB: 10 5% (after tax); »3 million RMB: 11%{after tax); =5 million RMB 12% {after tax)
Retum
16
17 R e 2441
18 ?;j;: of 24 months
19
WaHiE IAEAAT L TiEEy (A4S T (A4S FE B NiET
20
21 Ejﬁge of Construction and Operation of 43 shops at Beijing Yayuncun and Changchun of Lentuc Group
22
WeMi M e o i 2
23 &£ ‘f&‘l" | Aol
24 Retum .
55 Distribution o1 -annual
26
27
28
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Jal fodg 4]

TS TINEER L H R B PP S B B2{Z 00, 1P 2R E50%.
2 B4R s AL ERFERIA, SR ARSI ELRIES H/TT iR,

T LER] 2012511 H, BAIRSRE ST =208 53470, FAGE L AR A — A BASF 1 R F82%MR
¥, EHET{LCHET.

ANEEBARAE T LhiA a1 BAmER 14,965, 646 BHEE.
L FIRE S E2013F1 A220, BERFEEEETN1.56% 08, FHEFARENEL 23346402
Ahe

3 MAEFPOMEFEE, HERABRDEAFHEHSWA#ITIVZL, HRETFRH, RERFELRAZEERA
LA AT, HEEERETR. ®E. BiEH: frr1994F, BROEXBE RS
HEEFSEIERET S 40k 2010F128 108, BROSHAETER BEFE S T {ATIS LAS) EREEZE A
MR RSN i, ZHEPEYTREDTE FHAMESERE M. BRH A11 TAERE R
ik4siE, HAPlhsEe®E, RE. I'F. #fiLs—3.

1. Land and property of Inner Mangolia Gongzhi College, total value RME 200 million. Mortgage rate is
less than 50%
2. Guo Hetong, beneficial owner of Lentuo Group, provide unlimited joint and several liability.

1) As of Nov. 2012, total assets of Lentuo Group are RMB 853 millicn, as the biggest shareholder, Guc
Hetang, owns 82% of Lentuo Group, around RMB 700 million.

Risk Control 2) He owns 14 965 646 shares of Lentuo Intemational, as of Jan. 22, 2013, its closing price is USD 1.56

e
o
=
L

Account
Info:

per share. Total value of shares owned by Guo Hetong is USD 23.3464 million.

As of the end of 2011, Lentuc Group's annual revenue is more than RMB 3.7 billion. In the coming two
years, the company can achieve more than 9 billion revenue. Therefore, the first source of pay back is
reliable and sufficient. Lentuo Group: established in 1994, is a large professional automobile sales and
genvice company. On Dec. 10, 2010, Lentuo Intemational of Lentuo Group (NYSE LAS) went public on
the NY¥3E, and is the first public automaobile sales and service company. Gumently, it owns 11 operating
standard 45 stores, 8 of them are in Beijing; Tianjin, Guangzhou and Zhejiang each have one store.

Ut b i B LA B R

FEERT: T REAT R AT & R IE s A T

W 5. 1101 4479 0350 01

SHEES TEATHREE: XA M ANAE & BHRXXA 1)
LM BT AR O A B

Name: Beijing Jinborun Investment Center {Limited Partnership}
Bank Info: Beijing Chaowai Branch, Fing'an Bank, Co_, Ltd.
Flease note: (Note: XXX{subscnber} subscrbe Jinborun XXX 10 thausand}

MNote: please de not omit "Limited Partnership”® in Name
* %k %k %k 3k
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1 The Two Trust Loans Do Not Appear to Be Disclosed in LAS's
) Financial Statements
3 An analysis of the audited balance sheet footnotes disclosed in the
4 2013 20F indicates that LAS never consolidated the trust loans.
According to footnote 18 on page F42, shortterm and longterm loans at
5 December 31, 2013 consisted of the following:
6
(click to enlarge)
7
Decomber 31,
8 2L FTIn)
s ot Tss
g | Shostacn 5274 8,50 19,049
L ong-term, clarest poction — 6,000 21
3650 1459 120,640
10 Lomg-temm. novi-cuement portion — 33.000 5451
NTTh 79968 135,461
11
12 "The Group's shortterm loans were RMBdenominated loans obtained
13 from banks and other financial institutions with interest rates ranging
from 4.83% to 10.25% per annum and 5.60% to 10.20% per annum for
14 the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2013, respectively. The
15 weighted average interest rate on shortterm loans outstanding as of
December 31, 2012 and 2013 was 7.91% and 7.53% per annum,
16 respectively. The shortterm loans are repayable between January 2014
17 and November 2014. The unused lines of credit for shortterm financing
18 amounted to RMB 356,421 and RMB 668,680 (US$110,458) as of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013, respectively.”
19
20 (Emphasis added).
21 i th
40. On May 29, 2014, the Company issued the May 29~ Company
22
Response, which states in parts:
23
24 Lentuo International Responds to the Geolnvesting Report and Unusual
Market Activity
25
26 BEIJING, May 29, 2014 /PRNewswire/ Lentuo International Inc.
27 (NYSE: LAS
(http://studio$.financialcontent.com/prnews?Page=Quote& Ticker=LAS)
28 ) ("Lentuo" or "the Company"), a leading nonstateowned automobile
-16 -
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1 retailer headquartered in Beijing, today responded to the allegations
raised in a report issued by Geolnvesting (the "Report") on May 28,
2 2014. The Company firmly believes that the Report contains numerous
3 misstatements and misleading speculations.
4 The Report falsely stated that: (i) Lentuo Electromechanical ("LE"), a
5 PRC entity controlled by the Company's chairman Hetong Guo ("Mr.
6 Guo"), incurred RMB250 million in debt with two trust funds; (ii) Mr.
Guo's shareholding in the Company and the revenue of the Company
7 were pledged as collateral to secure the debt; and (iii) the Company
3 failed to include LE's RMB250 million debt in the Company's
9 consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013.
10 All of these statements are false and potentially misleading. As the
11 Company's annual report clearly disclosed, while LE is controlled by
Mr. Guo, LE is not part of the Company. Any loan incurred by LE that
12 does not impose any obligations or liabilities on the Company or its
13 assets is not required to be disclosed. Mr. Guo has confirmed that LE
incurred one loan with one trust fund in the amount of RMBI50
14 million in January 2014, and this loan does not impose any obligations
15 or liabilities on the Company and its assets. Neither Mr. Guo's equity
16 interest in the Company nor the revenue of the Company is pledged as
collateral to secure this loan. Based on the above, the Company is not
17 required to disclose this loan or include it in the consolidated financial
18 statements for the year ended December 31, 2013. The Company
believes that it has made full and accurate disclosure in its annual report
19 on Form 20F for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 in accordance
20 with the rules and regulations under the U.S. securities law.
21 .
(Emphasis added).
22
23 41. On June 5, 2014, Seeking Alpha the June 5™ Geolnvesting Rebuttal,
24 || which states in parts:
25 Our full rebuttal:
26
27 ¢ We understand that LE is not part of LAS but it is in fact
)8 controlled by Mr. Guo.
-17 -
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1 e LAS confirmed the RMB 150 trust loan but did not mention the
other RMB 100 loan. It's not clear whether LAS is denying the
2 existence of that loan.
3
4 ® LE raised the RMB 150 million partly to finance its new Audi
Dealership in Beijing (as disclosed in the trust documents),
5 which should have been disclosed in LAS's 20F since LAS has
6 disclosed that it is building an Audi dealership in Beijing.
7 o We believe consolidation of Lentuo Electromechanical into
8 LAS's financial statements is required. Of particular relevance
9 is that LAS's 2013 20F states:
10 ""Furthermore, as our reorganization was conducted between
11 entities under the common control of Mr. Hetong Guo, the
historical financial results, assets and liabilities of the affiliated
12 entities and Lentuo Electromechanical have been reflected in
13 our consolidated financial statements as if the current
14 organizational structure had always existed."
15 It is highly likely that the trust loans incurred by LE should be
16 accounted for or at least disclosed in LAS's financial statements.
17 e The RMB 150 million trust loan document clearly states the
18 sources of collateral:
19 "
20 a. Source of funds pledged to repay the loan:
21 Revenue generated from all 4S stores (including 4S stores under
construction) of Beijing Lentuo Electromechanical Group Co.,
22 Ltd.
23 b. Guarantor:
24 Beneficial owner of Beijing Lentuo Electromechanical Group Co.,
Ltd., Guo Hetong and his wife
25 provide unlimited joint and several liabilities.
26
27 e The trust file states the revenues generated from all 4S stores
28 (including 48§ stores under construction) are pledged as the source
-18 -
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1 of funds to repay the loan. If pledging the revenues of the 4S5
) stores is not collateral as stated by LAS in its rebuttal, then what
is?
3
4 ¢ Play on words; the company is clever in its assertion that Mr.
Guo's equity interest in the company is not pledged as collateral to
5 secure the RMB150M loan. However, Mr. Guo is collateral to the
6 loan putting all his assets at risk. As stated in the trust loan file,
Mr. Guo and his wife provide unlimited joint and several liability
7 guarantees for the trust loan. In the event of default, Chinese
8 investors in the RMB 150 million trust loan could sue Mr. Guo
9 and claim Mr. Guo's LAS shares and other assets in court. LAS
has not disclosed this risk factor in its SEC filings.
10
11 The other RMB 100 million trust loan carries similar provisions as the
RMB 150 million trust loan and is being used to build 4S dealerships.
12 We therefore do not understand why LAS denies the existence of
13 collateral and the company's potential exposure to Mr. Guo's obligations
14 if he is unable to repay the loans.
15 ¢ Does LE have other 4S stores outside of the ones owned by LAS
16 that can be pledged as collateral?
17 We believe that NYSE and LAS's auditor should review the facts and
18 circumstances related to the trust loans extended to LE and guaranteed
by Mr. Guo to determine whether LAS and its shareholders are exposed
19 to potential liabilities if Mr. Guo fails to meet his obligations. In our
20 opinion, LAS's financial statements should be restated to reflect the
21 loans.
22 (Emphasis added).
23
24 42. On this news, Lentuo’s ADS fell $0.34 per share or over 9% from its
5 previous closing price to close at $3.15 per share on June 5, 2014, damaging
26 investors.
27 43.  On March 10, 2015, Beijing Business Today reported that “due to the
»g ||capital turnover problem, new cars sales at LAS’ 4S stores have all stopped, and only
-19-
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the after-sale [services] are still in operation. Now, the Group is actively seeking
solutions [for the current problems], and related government agencies have stepped
in.”

44. On this news, Lentuo’s ADS fell $0.30 per share or over 50% over the
next two days from its previous closing price on March 9, 2015 to close at $0.29 per
share on March 11, 2015, further damaging investors.

45. As a result of Defendants’ wrongful acts and omissions, and the
precipitous decline in the market value of the Company’s ADS Plaintiff and other
Class members have suffered significant losses and damages.

PLAINTIFF’S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

46. Plaintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of
Civil Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf of a Class, consisting of all those who
purchased or otherwise acquired Lentuo ADS during the Class Period (the “Class”);
and were damaged upon the revelation of the alleged corrective disclosures. Excluded
from the Class are Defendants herein, the officers and directors of the Company, at
all relevant times, members of their immediate families and their legal
representatives, heirs, successors or assigns and any entity in which Defendants have
or had a controlling interest.

47. The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. Throughout the Class Period, Lentuo ADS was actively traded on the
NYSE. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this time
and can be ascertained only through appropriate discovery, Plaintiff believes that
there are hundreds or thousands of members in the proposed Class. Record owners
and other members of the Class may be identified from records maintained by
Lentuo or its transfer agent and may be notified of the pendency of this action by
mail, using the form of notice similar to that customarily used in securities class

actions.
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48. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the members of the Class as
all members of the Class are similarly affected by Defendants’ wrongful conduct in
violation of federal law that is complained of herein.

49. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members
of the Class and has retained counsel competent and experienced in class and
securities litigation. Plaintiff has no interests antagonistic to or in conflict with those
of the Class.

50. Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class
and predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class.

Among the questions of law and fact common to the Class are:

° whether the federal securities laws were violated by Defendants’ acts as
alleged herein;
o whether statements made by Defendants to the investing public during

the Class Period misrepresented material facts about the business,
operations and management of Lentuo;

° whether the Individual Defendants caused Lentuo to issue false and
misleading financial statements during the Class Period;

° whether Defendants acted knowingly or recklessly in issuing false and
misleading financial statements;

o whether the prices of Lentuo ADS during the Class Period were
artificially inflated because of the Defendants’ conduct complained of
herein; and

L whether the members of the Class have sustained damages and, if so,
what is the proper measure of damages.

51. A class action is superior to all other available methods for the fair and
efficient adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is
impracticable. Furthermore, as the damages suffered by individual Class members
may be relatively small, the expense and burden of individual litigation make it

-21 -
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impossible for members of the Class to individually redress the wrongs done to them.
There will be no difficulty in the management of this action as a class action.

52. Plaintiff will rely, in part, upon the presumption of reliance established
by the fraud-on-the-market doctrine in that:

° Defendants made public misrepresentations or failed to disclose material

facts during the Class Period;

° the omissions and misrepresentations were material;
L Lentuo ADS are traded in an efficient market;
o the Company’s shares were liquid and traded with moderate to heavy

volume during the Class Period;

° the Company traded on the NYSE and was covered by multiple analysts;

o the misrepresentations and omissions alleged would tend to induce a

reasonable investor to misjudge the value of the Company’s ADS; and

° Plaintiff and members of the Class purchased, acquired and/or sold

Lentuo ADS between the time the Defendants failed to disclose or
misrepresented material facts and the time the true facts were disclosed,
without knowledge of the omitted or misrepresented facts.

53. Based upon the foregoing, Plaintiff and the members of the Class are
entitled to a presumption of reliance upon the integrity of the market.

54. Alternatively, Plaintiff and the members of the Class are entitled to the
presumption of reliance established by the Supreme Court in Affiliated Ute Citizens of
the State of Utah v. United States, 406 U.S. 128, 92 S. Ct. 2430 (1972), as Defendants
omitted material information in their Class Period statements in violation of a duty to
disclose such information, as detailed above.

COUNT1

Violations of Section 10(b) of The Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5
Against All Defendants

-922-
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55. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above
as if fully set forth herein.

56. This Count is asserted against Defendants and is based upon Section
10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder by the SEC.

57. During the Class Period, Defendants engaged in a plan, scheme,
conspiracy and course of conduct, pursuant to which they knowingly or recklessly
engaged in acts, transactions, practices and courses of business which operated as a
fraud and deceit upon Plaintiff and the other members of the Class; made various
untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state material facts necessary in
order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not misleading; and employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud
in connection with the purchase and sale of ADS. Such scheme was intended to, and,
throughout the Class Period, did: (i) deceive the investing public, including Plaintiff
and other Class members, as alleged herein; (ii) artificially inflate and maintain the
market price of Lentuo securities; and (iii) cause Plaintiff and other members of the
Class to purchase or otherwise acquire Lentuo ADS at artificially inflated prices. In
furtherance of this unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct, Defendants, and
each of them, took the actions set forth herein.

58. Pursuant to the above plan, scheme, conspiracy and course of conduct,
each of the Defendants participated directly or indirectly in the preparation and/or
issuance of the quarterly and annual reports, SEC filings, press releases and other
statements and documents described above, including statements made to securities
analysts and the media that were designed to influence the market for Lentuo ADS.
Such reports, filings, releases and statements were materially false and misleading in
that they failed to disclose material adverse information and misrepresented the truth

about Lentuo’s finances and business prospects.
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59. By virtue of their positions at Lentuo, Defendants had actual knowledge
of the materially false and misleading statements and material omissions alleged
herein and intended thereby to deceive Plaintiff and the other members of the Class,
or, in the alternative, Defendants acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that
they failed or refused to ascertain and disclose such facts as would reveal the
materially false and misleading nature of the statements made, although such facts
were readily available to Defendants. Said acts and omissions of Defendants were
committed willfully or with reckless disregard for the truth. In addition, each
defendant knew or recklessly disregarded that material facts were being
misrepresented or omitted as described above.

60. Defendants were personally motivated to make false statements and omit
material information necessary to make the statements not misleading in order to
personally benefit from the sale of Lentuo ADS from their personal portfolios.

61. Information showing that Defendants acted knowingly or with reckless
disregard for the truth is peculiarly within Defendants’ knowledge and control. As the
senior managers and/or directors of Lentuo, the Individual Defendants had
knowledge of the details of Lentuo’s internal affairs.

62. The Individual Defendants are liable both directly and indirectly for the
wrongs complained of herein. Because of their positions of control and authority, the
Individual Defendants were able to and did, directly or indirectly, control the content
of the statements of Lentuo. As officers and/or directors of a publicly-held company,
the Individual Defendants had a duty to disseminate timely, accurate, and truthful
information with respect to Lentuo’s businesses, operations, future financial
condition and future prospects. As a result of the dissemination of the aforementioned
false and misleading reports, releases and public statements, the market price of
Lentuo ADS was artificially inflated throughout the Class Period. In ignorance of the
adverse facts concerning Lentuo’s business and financial condition which were
concealed by Defendants, Plaintiff and the other members of the Class purchased or
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otherwise acquired Lentuo ADS at artificially inflated prices and relied upon the price
of the ADS, the integrity of the market for the ADS and/or upon statements
disseminated by Defendants, and were damaged thereby.

63. During the Class Period, Lentuo ADS were traded on an active and
efficient market. Plaintiff and the other members of the Class, relying on the
materially false and misleading statements described herein, which the Defendants
made, issued or caused to be disseminated, or relying upon the integrity of the
market, purchased or otherwise acquired shares of Lentuo ADS at prices artificially
inflated by Defendants’ wrongful conduct. Had Plaintiff and the other members of the
Class known the truth, they would not have purchased or otherwise acquired said
ADS, or would not have purchased or otherwise acquired them at the inflated prices
that were paid. At the time of the purchases and/or acquisitions by Plaintiff and the
Class, the true value of Lentuo ADS was substantially lower than the prices paid by
Plaintiff and the other members of the Class. The market rice of Lentuo ADS
declined sharply upon public disclosure of the facts alleged herein to the injury of
Plaintiff and Class members.

64. By reason of the conduct alleged herein, Defendants knowingly or
recklessly, directly or indirectly, have violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and
Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder.

65. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct,
Plaintiff and the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with
their respective purchases, acquisitions and sales of the Company’s ADS during the
Class Period, upon the disclosure that the Company had been disseminating
misrepresented financial statements to the investing public.

COUNT II

Violations of Section 20(a) of The Exchange Act
Against The Individual Defendants
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66. Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained in the
foregoing paragraphs as if fully set forth herein.

67. During the Class Period, the Individual Defendants participated in the
operation and management of Lentuo, and conducted and participated, directly and
indirectly, in the conduct of Lentuo’s business affairs. Because of their senior
positions, they knew the adverse non-public information about Lentuo’s current
financial position and future business prospects.

68. As officers and/or directors of a publicly owned company, the Individual
Defendants had a duty to disseminate accurate and truthful information with respect
to Lentuo’s business practices, and to correct promptly any public statements issued
by Lentuo which had become materially false or misleading.

69. Because of their positions of control and authority as senior officers, the
Individual Defendants were able to, and did, control the contents of the various
reports, press releases and public filings which Lentuo disseminated in the
marketplace during the Class Period concerning the Company’s business, operational
and accounting policies. Throughout the Class Period, the Individual Defendants
exercised their power and authority to cause Lentuo to engage in the wrongful acts
complained of herein. The Individual Defendants therefore, were “controlling
persons” of Lentuo within the meaning of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. In this
capacity, they participated in the unlawful conduct alleged which artificially inflated
the market price of Lentuo ADS.

70. Each of the Individual Defendants, therefore, acted as a controlling
person of Lentuo. By reason of their senior management positions and/or being
directors of Lentuo, each of the Individual Defendants had the power to direct the
actions of, and exercised the same to cause, Lentuo to engage in the unlawful acts and
conduct complained of herein. Each of the Individual Defendants exercised control

over the general operations of Lentuo and possessed the power to control the specific
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activities which comprise the primary violations about which Plaintiff and the other
members of the Class complain.

71. By reason of the above conduct, the Individual Defendants are liable
pursuant to Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act for the violations committed by
Lentuo.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendants as follows:

A.  Determining that the instant action may be maintained as a class action
under Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and certifying Plaintiff as the
Class representative;

B. Requiring Defendants to pay damages sustained by Plaintiff and the
Class by reason of the acts and transactions alleged herein;

C. Awarding Plaintiff and the other members of the Class prejudgment and
post-judgment interest, as well as her reasonable attorneys’ fees, expert fees and other
costs; and

D. Awarding such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and
proper.

DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.

Dated: March 13, 2015 Respectfully submitted,
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